Public Document Pack

WOKING

BOROUGH COUNCIL

T

TO THE CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Executive to be held on Thursday,
10 September 2020 at 7.00 pm. The meeting will be held virtually and webcast live through the
Council’'s website in accordance with the Coronavirus Act 2020 and The Local Authorities and
Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel
Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 (S.1.2020 No. 392).

Please note the meeting will be filmed and will be broadcast live and subsequently as an archive
on the Council’s website (www.woking.gov.uk). The images and sound recording will also be used
for training purposes within the Council. By joining the meeting remotely, you are consenting to
being filmed.

The agenda for the meeting is set out below.

RAY MORGAN
Chief Executive

AGENDA
PART | - PRESS AND PUBLIC PRESENT

1. Minutes
To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 16 July 2020 as published.

2. Apologies for Absence

3. Urgent Business

To consider any business that the Chairman rules may be dealt with under Section 100B(4)
of the Local Government Act 1972.

4. Declarations of Interest (Pages 5 - 8)

(i)  To receive declarations of interest from Members and Officers in respect of any item to
be considered at the meeting.

(i)  In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, Councillor D J Bittleston declares a
non-pecuniary interest in any items concerning the companies of which he is a
Council-appointed director. The companies are listed in the attached schedule. The
interests are such that speaking and voting are permissible.


http://www.woking.gov.uk/

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, Councillor A Azad declares a non-
pecuniary interest in any items concerning the companies of which she is a Council-
appointed director. The companies are listed in the attached schedule. The interests
are such that speaking and voting are permissible.

In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, Councillor C S Kemp declares a
non-pecuniary interest in any items concerning the companies of which he is a
Council-appointed director. The companies are listed in the attached schedule. The
interests are such that speaking and voting are permissible.

In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, Councillor D Harlow declares a
non-pecuniary interest in any items concerning the companies of which she is a
Council-appointed director. The companies are listed in the attached schedule. The
interests are such that speaking and voting are permissible.

In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, Councillor G S Cundy declares a
non-pecuniary interest in any items concerning the companies of which he is a
Council-appointed director. The companies are listed in the attached schedule. The
interests are such that speaking and voting are permissible.

In accordance with the Officer Employment Procedure Rules, the Chief Executive, Ray
Morgan, declares a disclosable personal interest (non-pecuniary) in any items
concerning the companies of which he is a Council-appointed director. The companies
are listed in the attached schedule. The interests are such that Mr Morgan may advise
the Executive on those items.

In accordance with the Officer Employment Procedure Rules, the Deputy Chief
Executive, Douglas Spinks, declares a disclosable personal interest (non-pecuniary) in
any items concerning the companies of which he is a Council-appointed director. The
companies are listed in the attached schedule. The interests are such that Mr Spinks
may advise the Executive on those items.

In accordance with the Officer Employment Procedure Rules, the Director of Legal and
Democratic Services, Peter Bryant, declares a disclosable personal interest (non-
pecuniary) in any items concerning the companies of which he is a Council-appointed
director. The companies are listed in the attached schedule. The interests are such
that Mr Bryant may advise the Executive on those items.

In accordance with the Officer Employment Procedure Rules, the Director of Finance,
Leigh Clarke, declares a disclosable personal interest (non-pecuniary) in any items
concerning the companies of which she is a Council-appointed director. The
companies are listed in the attached schedule. The interests are such that Mrs Clarke
may advise the Executive on those items.

In accordance with the Officer Employment Procedure Rules, the Director of Housing,
Louise Strongitharm, declares a disclosable personal interest (non-pecuniary) in any
items concerning the companies of which she is a Council-appointed director. The
companies are listed in the attached schedule. The interests are such that Mrs
Strongitharm may advise the Executive on those items.

In accordance with the Officer Employment Procedure Rules, the Director of
Community Services, Julie Fisher, declares a disclosable personal interest (non-
pecuniary) in any items concerning the companies of which she is a Council-appointed
director. The companies are listed in the attached schedule. The interests are such
that Mrs Fisher may advise the Executive on those items.

In accordance with the Officer Employment Procedure Rules, the Director of Finance,
Leigh Clarke, declares a disclosable personal interest (non-pecuniary) in any items
concerning Woking Football Club and/or the GolDev Woking Limited development.
The interest arises from (i) her husband having a small shareholding in Woking
Football Club and (ii) being a Council-appointed director of Kingfield Community Sports
Centre Limited. The interest is such that Mrs Clarke may advise the Executive on



those items.

(xiv) In accordance with the Officer Employment Procedure Rules, the Director of Legal and
Democratic Services, Peter Bryant, declares a disclosable personal interest (non-
pecuniary) in any items concerning Woking Football Club and/or the GolDev Woking
Limited development. The interest arises from (i) him being a member of the Cards
Trust (the supporters’ club for Woking Football Club), (ii) providing occasional unpaid
assistance to Woking Football Club, e.g. acting as returning officer at the election of
directors and (iii) being a Council-appointed director of Kingfield Community Sports
Centre Limited. The interest is such that Mr Bryant may advise the Executive on those
items.

Questions

5. To deal with any written questions submitted under Section 3 of the Executive Procedure
Rules. Copies of the questions and draft replies will be available electronically at the

meeting.

Notices of Motion

At its meeting on 30 July 2020, the Council referred the following Notice of Motion to the Executive
for consideration.

6. Notice of Motion - Clir M Ali - Expenses paid by Woking Council owned bodies EXE20-051
(Pages 9 - 10)

Reporting Person — Corporate Management Group

Matters for Determination

7. Reorganisation of Local Government EXE20-056 (Pages 11 - 56)
Reporting Person — Ray Morgan

8. Management Arrangements EXE20-055 (Pages 57 - 60)
Reporting Person — Ray Morgan

Performance Management

9. Performance and Financial Monitoring Information

Please bring to the meeting your copy of the latest Performance and Financial Monitoring
Information (Green Book).

AGENDA ENDS

Date Published - 2 September 2020



For further information regarding this agenda and
arrangements for the meeting, please contact Julie
Northcote on 01483 743053 or email
julie.northcote@woking.gov.uk

VA

FSC

Mixed Sources

Product group from well-managed
forests and other controlled sources
www.fscorg Cert no. SA-COC-001794
© 1996 Forest Stewardship Council




Agenda Item 4.

Schedule Referred to in Declaration of Interests

Council-appointed directorships

Councillor D J Bittleston

Export House Limited

Thameswey Guest Houses Limited

Rutland Woking (Carthouse Lane) Limited

Thameswey Housing Limited

Rutland (Woking) Limited

Thameswey Limited

Rutland Woking (Residential) Limited

Victoria Square Residential Limited

Thameswey Developments Limited

VSW Hotel Limited

Victoria Square Woking Limited

Councillor A Azad

Kingfield Community Sports Centre Limited

Thameswey Housing Limited

Thameswey Central Milton Keynes Limited

Thameswey Limited

Thameswey Developments Limited

Thameswey Maintenance Services Limited

Thameswey Energy Limited

Thameswey Solar Limited

Thameswey Guest Houses Limited

Thameswey Sustainable Communities Limited

Councillor C S Kemp

Kingfield Community Sports Centre Limited

Thameswey Housing Limited

Thameswey Guest Houses Limited

Thameswey Limited

Councillor D Harlow

Thameswey Guest Houses Limited

Thameswey Housing Limited

Thameswey Limited

Councillor G S Cundy

Brookwood Cemetery Limited

Brookwood Park Limited

Woking Necropolis and Mausoleum Limited

Page 5




Ray Morgan, Chief Executive

Export House Limited

Thameswey Limited

Rutland Woking (Carthouse Lane) Limited

Victoria Square Residential Limited

Rutland Woking (Residential) Limited

VSW Hotel Limited

Rutland (Woking) Limited

Victoria Square Woking Limited

Thameswey Maintenance Services Limited

Woking Shopping Limited

Douglas Spinks, Deputy Chief Executive

Brookwood Cemetery Limited

Thameswey Energy Limited

Brookwood Park Limited

Thameswey Limited

Energy Centre for Sustainable Communities
Limited

Thameswey Solar Limited

Export House Limited

Thameswey Sustainable Communities Limited

Thameswey Central Milton Keynes Limited

Woking Necropolis and Mausoleum Limited

Woking Shopping Limited

Peter Bryant, Director of Legal and Democratic Services

Brookwood Cemetery Limited

Thameswey Energy Limited

Brookwood Park Limited

Thameswey Guest Houses Limited

Energy Centre for Sustainable Communities
Limited

Thameswey Housing Limited

Kingfield Community Sports Centre Limited

Thameswey Limited

Rutland Woking (Carthouse Lane) Limited
(alternate for Ray Morgan)

Thameswey Maintenance Services Limited

Rutland (Woking) Limited
(alternate for Ray Morgan)

Thameswey Solar Limited

Thameswey Central Milton Keynes Limited

Thameswey Sustainable Communities Limited

Thameswey Developments Limited

Woking Necropolis and Mausoleum Limited

Leigh Clarke, Director of Finance

Kingfield Community Sports Centre Limited

Louise Strongitharm, Director of Housing

Thameswey Developments Limited

Thameswey Housing Limited

Thameswey Guest Houses Limited

Thameswey Limited

Page 6




Julie Fisher, Director of Community Services

Victoria Square Woking Limited

Page 7







Agenda Item 6.

EXECUTIVE - 10 SEPTEMBER 2020

NOTICE OF MOTION - CLLR M ALI - EXPENSES PAID BY WOKING COUNCIL OWNED
BODIES
Executive Summary

At its meeting on 30 July 2020, the Council referred the following Notice of Motion to the Executive.

Councillor M Ali

Expenses paid by Woking Council owned bodies

“This council requires that expenses of all kinds (e.g. benefits, gifts and trips) are published for
Council Officers and Councillors appointed by Woking Council to be Directors of companies owned
by Woking Council and its residents.

These expenses will be publicly available at monthly intervals henceforth and also retrospectively
back to the formation of the bodies or appointment.”

Officer Comment

“Details of Council expenditure (including expenditure incurred on behalf of Council companies)
are routinely published on the Council’s website. This can be viewed through the following link:-

http://datashare.woking.gov.uk/View/expenditure

Details of gifts and hospitality received by Members are routinely published on the Council’s
website. This can be viewed through the following link:-

https://moderngov.woking.gov.uk/mgMemberindex.aspx?bcr=1

Details of gifts and hospitality received by Officers are recorded in an open Register. Going
forward, these details could be published on the Council’s website.”

Background Papers: None.

Reporting Person: Councillor M Ali
Email: clirmohammad.ali@woking.gov.uk

Peter Bryant, Director of Legal and Democratic Services
Email: peter.bryant@woking.gov.uk, Extn, 3030

Contact Person: Peter Bryant, Director of Legal and Democratic Services
Email: peter.bryant@woking.gov.uk, Extn, 3030

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ayesha Azad
Email: clirayesha.azad@woking.gov.uk

Shadow Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ann-Marie Barker
Email: cllirann-marie.barker@woking.gov.uk

Page 9 EXE20-051


http://datashare.woking.gov.uk/View/expenditure
https://moderngov.woking.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1

Notice of Motion — Clir M Ali — Expenses paid by Woking Council owned bodies

Date Published: 2 September 2020

Page 10



Agenda Iltem 7.

EXECUTIVE - 10 SEPTEMBER 2020

REORGANISATION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT
Executive Summary

This brief report seeks Executive approval to enable the Council to respond to forthcoming
proposals in respect of the Government White Paper on Devolution and Local Government.

It is probable that some form of unitary authority arrangement will come into effect in the medium
term. Whether it is a single authority for Surrey or two or three authorities remains uncertain.
Whichever occurs it will be important to secure the ability for local people to shape their place and
address local issues. Local Town and Parish Councils that provide for that local voice through
elected representatives serve many areas of Surrey; Woking does not have any representation at
that level.

Surrey County Council is pursuing a proposal to establish a single unitary authority; Borough and
District Councils are jointly investigating appropriate unitary arrangements.

The Executive is requested to note the current work in respect of unitary authority arrangements,
note the £30,000 use of contingency approved under delegated authority to facilitate joint work with

other Borough and District Councils and authorise preparations for a Governance Review to
establish a Town Council and/or Town and Parish Councils.

Recommendations
The Executive is requested to:
RESOLVE That

()  the current work in respect of unitary authority arrangements be
noted;

(i) the use of £30,000 of contingency approved under delegated
authority be noted; and

(i) preparations be made for a Governance Review and reported to
Council for approval at its meeting on 15 October 2020.

Reasons for Decision

Reason: To enable the Council to respond to the proposals for unitary
authorities.

The Executive has the authority to determine the recommendation(s) set out above.

Page 11 EXE20-056



Background Papers:

Reporting Person:

Contact Person:

Portfolio Holder:

Shadow Portfolio Holder:

Date Published:

Reorganisation of Local Government

None.

Ray Morgan, Chief Executive
Email: ray.morgan@woking.gov.uk, Extn: 3333

Ray Morgan, Chief Executive
Email: ray.morgan@woking.gov.uk, Extn: 3333

Councillor David Bittleston
Email: clirdavid.bittleston@woking.gov.uk

Councillor Ann-Marie Barker
Email: cllirann-marie.barker@woking.gov.uk

2 September 2020

Page 12



1.0

1.1

1.2

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

4.0

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

Reorganisation of Local Government
Introduction

The Minister for Regional Growth and Local Government, Simon Clarke MP, opened the
discussion on the reorganisation of Local Government at the virtual Local Government
Association Conference held on 3 July 2020. Attached, at Appendix 1, is an extract from his
statement to the Conference.

The Government is due to issue a White Paper on “Recovery and Devolution” in the autumn.
There is much speculation about what it will contain but the consistent message is that there
will be opportunities to put forward proposals for Unitary Council(s).

Surrey County Council Position

In a publication to all Surrey residents, mainly about Coronavirus, under the heading
“Keeping Surrey Safe”, Surrey County Council has publicly stated its intention to pursue a
Single Unitary Council for Surrey under the banner “Making Surrey Fit for the Future”.
Subsequently the County Council has evolved this message to “One Surrey Together”.
Attached, at Appendix 2, is a copy of the slides to its Members.

Borough and District Position

Borough and District Council Leaders have discussed how they should respond to the
proposal for a Single Unitary Council. A number of Boroughs and District have passed
resolutions against a single unitary, however collectively they have agreed to undertake a
programme of work to review the business case for future organisational arrangements
across Surrey. Runnymede Borough Council is leading the commissioning of a consultancy
firm to undertake the development of a business case and Elmbridge Borough Council is
leading the commissioning of a communications consultant.

The work with Surrey Borough and District Councils will have regard to the work done by the
District Council Network (DCN). Attached at Appendix 3 is a report issued by DCN entitled
“Power in Place: devolution and districts driving our recovery”. Attached at Appendix 4 is the
briefing note issued by DCN for Members of Parliament.

Woking Borough Council Position

Whilst exploring options for Unitary Council arrangements it will be important to ensure that
any solution, including a single unitary authority, provides for effective “Place Making” and for
“local representation”. Many parts of Surrey have Parish and/or Town Councils that could
form the platform of more local representation under any unitary arrangement. Woking does
not have any Parish or Town Councils.

If the residents of Woking are to maintain a voice in shaping their future at a local level, the
Council should consider the creation of Parish or Town Councils with a wide range of
delegated powers.

The Borough Council has the legal powers necessary to establish a Parish or Town Council
but must undertake a Governance Review. The Governance Review must examine whether
to create one or more parish councils to ensure that local government arrangements are
effective, convenient and reflect the identities and interests of the community in the area. In
conducting the review, the Council must consult local electors and any other persons or
bodies that the Council considers to have an interest in the review.

It is proposed that the Council should undertake a Governance Review in the context of a

Unitary Council, with a view to replacing the Borough Council level with a “Town Council”
and/or a core Town Council and some Parish Councils.

Page 13



Reorganisation of Local Government

4.5 |If supported by the Executive, Officers will prepare a report to Council at its meeting on 15
October 2020 for approval.

5.0 Implications
Financial

5.1 The Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader of the Council, approved a budgetary
provision of £30,000 as Woking Borough Council’s contribution to the joint work.

5.2 The cost of undertaking a Governance Review is to be assessed and will be reported to
Council when it is requested to approve a Governance Review.

Human Resource/Training and Development

5.3 The work on addressing the unitary authority issue will require additional resources through
the employment of consultants and place an additional burden on existing resources.

Community Safety

5.4 There are no community safety issues raised by this report.

Risk Management

5.5 There are no risk management issues raised by this report.

Sustainability

5.6 There are no sustainability issues raised by this report.

Equalities

5.7 There are no equalities issues raised by this report.
Safeguarding
5.8 There are no safeguarding issues raised by this report.
6.0 Consultations
6.1 There have been no public consultations undertaken in the preparation of this report.

6.2 There have been consultations between the Leaders and Chief Executives of Borough and
District Councils.

REPORT ENDS

Page 14



Reorganisation of Local Government

Appendix 1

Extract from Statement on 3 July 2020 by Simon Clarke MP
Minister for Regional Growth and Local Government

Devolution and Local Government

“Over the past few years, this government, in lockstep with council leaders, have commenced the
most ambitious devolution agenda in over 70 years.

We have made great breakthroughs and the Parliamentary Order laid literally just this week to
unlock £900 million of investment for the Sheffield City Region while a new devolution deal,
including over £1.1 billion of investment for West Yorkshire, was agreed and announced at Budget.

Once that new Mayor is elected in West Yorkshire, 41% of residents in England will be served by
directly elected city region mayors, who each have the powers to stimulate job creation, build
homes, improve transport and reduce local carbon emissions.

In the North of England, that figure rises to 63%, with strong and effective Metro Mayors like Andy
Burnham in Manchester and my friend Ben Houchen in the Tees Valley acting as powerful
ambassadors for their regions. Well now is the time to finish what we’ve started.

| am delighted to confirm today that this government will be pressing ahead with the publication of
our white paper on devolution and local recovery this autumn.

The white paper will connect local recovery with levelling up...

Providing a place-based strategy to boost regional economic performance in every corner of the
country, from the Northern Powerhouse and the Midlands Engine to the Western Gateway and the
Oxford-Cambridge Arc.

Our transformative plan will include a clear, ambitious strategy for strengthening our local
institutions...

With many more elected mayors and more unitary councils following in the footsteps of Dorset,
Buckinghamshire and Northamptonshire.

So that we can remove the complexity of governance and reduce costs to the taxpayer while
making space for town and parish councils to be genuinely empowered.

I’'m acutely aware of the vital contribution that town and parish councils make to everyday life,
whether it's keeping public toilets open, running car parks or maintaining natural spaces which
have been a lifeline to many throughout this time.

And | appreciate that there is a wealth of ideas to support the future of local government,
devolution and its role in our national recovery. This includes the LGA Re-thinking Local Report
and it's only appropriate that we take the time to consider the series of important offers and asks
that it makes of government.

More broadly my door is always open to those of you who | know will have ideas and reflections
after long service in the sector and | want to take all of those into account.

The British state needs to become fully match-fit for the future.

Page 15



Reorganisation of Local Government

| believe it’s right, as we work with you to remove the local barriers to recovery, that we shift power
from Whitehall to people on the ground who know their areas so well, understand their priorities,
and are empowered with the mandate, levers and agency to act upon them.

That is what our white paper on devolution and local recovery will seek to achieve, and | really do
look forward to discussing it with you in more detail later in the year.

COVID-19 has undoubtedly dealt a heavy blow to our regional economies but it's also underlined
the reality that an overly centralised state is not, and never will be, best placed to respond
effectively to the challenges that individual communities face.

I am not dogmatic on these issues, and we will always be led by the evidence.

Clearly, as we evolve a robust outcomes-led assessment framework will be key to our wider
strategy.

But my own experience as an MP from the devolved region gives me great confidence that our
national recovery should be founded upon our local endeavours.”

Page 16



“. ONE SURREY TOGETHER

''''''' A better, brighter, greener future

.
.
o®
«®
.
B
.
°
.®
. .
o* . o
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
B
.
«®
.

. <, - . . - 7 K
S . . . . S, 2 K
s . . . . - 2 .. "
; X 3 5 S = s s @ . . .
. . . o L] e . . * i y <
o® . . . ot 2 s A r . y f
. . - . o 2 4 Y Kk
] 0 . . & ® e . K
. ® - . . . i e .
b ; s s : . . .
. L] . . K
e g 5 . . :
. ® g . . ® S .
A . . 5 5 k
E & x 5 » . . 2
. . ® 2 =
. . :
. \d . ey b4 . K
. d . 2 > = k
° ® . o . o
. = . . < '
. . K -

" SURREY

COUNTY COUNCIL




Vision for Local Government in Surrey

We want Surrey to be a uniquely special place where everyone has a great start in life,
people live healthy and fulfilling lives, are enabled to achieve their full potential and
contribute to their community and where no one is left behind. Where our economy

thrives and grows, in balance with our beautiful natural environment.

We want this for our residents, our businesses and our partners.

But Surrey is being held back.

8T abed

We need to change the system of local government so that we can respond effectively
to the challenges we face and take the opportunities that are coming our way.

There are huge financial savings to be made and a more productive and resilient
economy to be harnessed that will benefit residents and communities.

We believe a single unitary authority can achieve this

and we are working on a detailed proposal that can deliver the best future
for Surrey, alongside residents, partners and government.



What a single unitary will deliver

6T obed

Unified
voice to listen
to and represent
Surrey’s communities
and businesses

Potential
for new powers,
freedoms and
flexibilities through the
opportunity for
devolution

Improved
resident Deliver
Stronger experience with substantial
local simpler services to efficiencies leading to
accountability with navigate, leading lower council
a new model of to less frustration tax bills for
community and wasted residents
engagement time

ONE SURREY
TOGETHER

Public
service

transformation led
by a single team
to ensure one
strategic
direction

system leadership
to accelerate health
and social care
integration and
create new
opportunities

financial
resilience delivering
a sustainable
model of local
government

Deliver on
Surrey’s long-term
economic ambitions
by aligning
infrastructure
investment with
strategic housing
delivery

Simplified
leadership to
drive inclusive growth
with a single
economic
development
strategy

A single waste
authority to drive
efficiencies and
reduce carbon
emissions




Why Is a unitary best?

More efficient — initial estimates show that we could save residents up to £35 million through
reorganisation alone, with further yearly savings of up to £99 million possible through service
transformation, leading to the potential for lower council tax

Easier navigation —residents no longer unsure of which authority is responsible for the vital services
they rely on

0z abed

Q00O ®

More integrated services — the ability to approach the needs of residents in an all-round way,
providing the most effective solutions

Better partnerships — strengthening connections with a host of organisations and reducing
complexities to solve local issues

Better for business and the economy — a holistic approach to skills, infrastructure and business
support provisions that will enable businesses to thrive and grow




Why not two, or even three, unitary councils?

T¢ abed

COH@O

Additional partnership complexity and costs — increasing the number of organisations that would
have to work together to deliver vital services, e.g. in policing and health, requiring even more
complex partnership arrangements at additional cost

Unbalanced economies — the uneven distribution of businesses and wealth generation in East-West
and North-South unitary proposals will affect revenue bases and service quality

Uneven pressure on services — population differences, e.g. age, would place more pressure on one
area than another

Stark differences in future financial viability — exposure to legacy commercial investment risks, debt
and revenue spending pressures within small, sub-optimal unitary councils, lacking the scale to
absorb and balance such threats

Damaging disruption to established, critical county services — e.g. Childrens’ Safeguarding, Adult
Social Care, Highways as new systems, processes and accountabilities would be required, putting
improvements seen in the last two years at risk



A single unitary council for Surrey

Deliverin
Large Local qualityg
enough tc_) enough to SEATEES AR
] be strategic be relevant orosperity
Q
® for all
N
A distinct and Giving everyone in Making a difference
recognizable county Surrey’s distinct, local in the lives of all our
and functional communities a voice residents,
economic and role in delivering communities and

area of 1.1m people our future success businesses



Timeline

July 2020 Secretary

Leader sent letter
to Sec of State to

of State Public
consultation on

request invitation business case

to develop Sept/Oct 2020  GHEESET March 2021
proposal to Business case Structural Autumn 2021

establish a unitary to council, then Changes Order Budge_t for new
authority in Surrey submitted laid and elections authority set
C to MHCLG deferred (tbc)

)
ccz‘ ‘

pugust Aut 2020 May 2021

2020 utumn ay _

Business Devolution Implementation

case and Local executive

developed Internal and Recoyery formed (tbc)

external White Paper
stakeholder published

engagement to
build support for
proposals

Co-design and transition to new authority






Appendix 3

BETTER LIVES
STRONGER ECONOMIES
DISTRICT COUNCILS’ NETWORK

Power in Place:
devolution and districts
driving our recovery




SUMMARY

We are at a pivotal point in our nation’s history; the coming
months will define our future for generations to come. The
Devolution and Local Recovery White Paper must move quickly
for jobs and growth, empowering the existing local capacity
and partnerships that can best deliver fast.

District councils represent the best of local government - they
are innovative and collaborative, they are strategic leaders and
trusted deliverers, they are rooted in community and connected
into every business, they drive growth and support some of the
most vulnerable, they are pragmatic focusing on outcomes, and
they are deeply embedded in the fabric of the communities,
towns and cities serving 20 million people across the country.

Devolution should back the success of districts in delivery. It
should not distract from the local recovery effort or reduce
delivery capacity through forcing reorganisation into a less
local, less agile, less responsive local government pushed by
interests wanting county unitary councils everywhere. Local
governance is a local matter, places must be free to decide
how fo organise services and to progress any kind of reform
only where there is significant local agreement.

Without doubt, our future national and local prosperity will
rely on a route forward that is defined by local, regional and
national collaboration around a focus on the residents and
businesses in places; and af this point they need delivery not
debate.

The Government’s Devolution and Local
Recovery White Paper should:

1. Deliver genuine devolution that
moves quickly to drive local growth

Right now, there's a crisis in our nafional and local economies
and huge challenges facing public services. Jobs and growth
must be priority ambitions for devolution; levelling up fowns,
cities and communifies, and ensuring everyone benefits. It
should focus on how districts and partners can help deliver best
returns from the whole-state effort in our places by granting
them new powers, fargeting and joining up services and
investments, and setfing out a clear framework for how this will
be taken forward. It should not get tripped up and bogged
down in debate on local government reform, consuming
significant resources and distracting from the urgent task at

hand.

2. Retain and build on the local
capacity to deliver

Devolution should empower district councils” existing local

rather than remove it through reorganisation. District councils
have been af the centre of the sectors’ successes across the
Covid- 19 pandemic; delivering the most business grants the
most quickly, rapidly accommodated rough sleepers, mobilising
and coordinafing the community effort, stepping in to help
shielded and non-shielded vulnerable groups, keeping waste
collections running, the planning system going, and more.
Devolution should empower disfricts because they deliver
solutions, not problems.

3. Empower real-world economies

District councils reflect the towns, cities and communities

in which people live and businesses operate. They are
embedded in the catchment areas for high streets and football
teams, the travel areas for work and leisure; they know their
local economies and hold a range of levers to get growth
going. A district level response is key, evidence suggests the
pandemic'’s impact on jobs and growth will vary between
district areas within county areas more than between county
areas and core cities. And so, devolution must empower district
councils and partners around the economic areas of our future;
celebrating our historical ceremonial counties rather than being

held back by them.

4. Continue to anchor local government
in local communities

English local government is amongst the most centralised

in Europe, and devolution must not centralise further again.
With populations nearing the size of Northern Ireland

and landscapes several times larger than Greater London,
county unitary authorities would resemble regional, not

local, government. The average size of a new county unitary
council would be 122 times larger than the average council in
Germany, 14 times larger than in Denmark, and 5 times larger
than the current average for all councils in England. Covid-19
revealed resilience, strength and power in our communities,
they must not be pushed away; when asked in referenda, the
public consistently vote against creating new unitary counties,
and they should be properly involved any future debate.

5. Reject false arguments that bigger
local government is better or cheaper
local government

The primary case for county unitary councils focuses on
achieving scale and savings. However, as a House of
Commons briefing for MPs summarised in 2019, all the
evidence is clear that increasing scale is no guarantee for
increasing efficiency or improving public services. Although
there might be some benefit of delivering some services at

delivery capacity with the tools and funding to deliver grOﬁtgge féerem levels, including having some services more local,



evidence poinfs to other factors playing a more influential

role in service delivery and efficiencies, such as political and
officer leadership. Meanwhile county councils have promoted
questionable projected savings from county unitary proposals,
which focus on removing delivery capacity and do not

come close fo resolving the funding challenges facing local
government; evidenced by the significant financial challenges
facing recently created unitary councils. In fact, rooting
services in locality could be most effective in achieving long
term financial sustainability.

6. Support strategic leadership across
wider functional economic areas

District councils are the natural administrative building blocks
across wider geographies and are already coming together
to provide leadership on wider strategic issues connecting
towns and cities. Devolution should further enable this by
equipping district councils and partners, like Local Enterprise
Partnerships, fo lead strategic issues such as infrastructure,
fransport and inward investment across wider economic areas;
potentially coming together in mayoral combined authorities
only where places want them. County unitary councils would
not work well within such models; creating strategic leadership
tension between a small number of large organisations,
meanwhile reducing the local delivery capacity to get things
done.

7. Introduce an upper limit for the size of
new unitary councils, in line with the
principle of electoral equality

Local governance should be determined locally, reform should
only fake place where there is significant local agreement that
it is the right thing for their residents and businesses. However,
the government should make clear that any future reform should
follow the principles of electoral equality as a cornersfone of
democracy, as set out in the Conservative Manifesfo and now
in primary legislation as part of the boundary review. In doing
so, it would mean indicating that a preferred population size for
any new unitary council be in line with existing unitary councils,
a population of around 250,000 people, and introducing an
upper limit of 500,000 to prevent an unacceptable divergence
from the principles of electoral equality.

NEXT STEPS

The route forward must be defined by collaboration around

a focus on the residents and businesses. We encourage all
district councils to continue local discussions with each other,
and with their county council, their town and parish councils,
their MPs, their local businesses, and with the whole range of
public services in their place; retaining their focus on delivering
for communities.

Page 27



CASE STUDIES

Cambridge City Council action plan to support rough
sleepers into longer term accommodation

Since the start of the Coronavirus lockdown, the council and its
partners in the community have found safe accommodation for
more than 140 people who had been sleeping rough or were
at risk of homelessness. These people were given self-isolating
accommodation at properties owned by the council, hoteliers,
colleges and some private landlords.

The council has since been working with a range of
organisations fo find longer term solutions for these people
and has already been successful in a number of cases. Now it
is implementing a plan fo continue this support that includes:

* conducting assessments of individuals’ support and
accommodation needs and assessing the help
partners can confinue to offer;

* confinuing help for people with a range of needs,
some of which are extremely complex, to make
the most of the accommodation options that are
available including hostels, pods and housing
association leased pods.

Sevenoaks District Council launch the Care for our
Community Scheme

The council took forward an idea generated from within
the community to provide a service to verify and provide
ID badges to a team of 1,500 volunteers across the district.
A website was developed and a customer solutions team

engaged fo receive requests from residents.

Operating 7am to 7pm for 16 weeks and linking to community
leaders in towns and parishes across the district, more than
1,500 requests for support from vulnerable and locked-down
residents were managed, from food shopping and collecting
prescriptions to walking dogs and critically befriending services.
The council is now focussed now on creafing a legacy that
retains this incredible volunteering effort for the benefit of our
District and are doing so in partnership with local community
organisations.

Lancaster City Council has launched a new Business
Support Hub

The council launched support for businesses as part of a
£ I'million plan to sustain and strengthen the local economy in
the wake of the coronavirus pandemic.

The aim of the hub is to support businesses that need advice on
how fo combat the pressures they may have found themselves
under during the lockdown.

The support package is designed to be flexible and focus on
individual requirements, which will be identified during an initial

business review.

Elements of support could then include coaching and mentoring,
help to access funding, advice on financial planning, support for
digital developments, and small recovery and resilience grants
for those not eligible for government assistance.




DELIVER GENUINE DEVOLUTION THAT MOVES
QUICKLY TO DRIVE JOBS AND GROWTH

“We are going to give greater powers to council leaders and to

communities. VWe are going to give more communities a greater say

over changes fo transport, housing, public services and infrastructure

that will benefit their areas and drive local growth.”

Boris Johnson, 27 July 2019, Speech at Manchester Science and Industry Museum

Right now, there's a crisis in our national and local
economies and huge challenges facing public services.
Jobs and growth must be priority ambitions for devolution;
levelling up towns, cities and communities, and ensuring
everyone benefits. It should focus on how districts and
partners can help deliver best returns from the whole-state
effort in our places by granting them new powers, targeting
and joining up services and investments, and setting out

a clear framework for how this will be taken forward. It
should not get tripped up and bogged down in debate on
local government reform, consuming significant resources
and distracting from the urgent task at hand.

Genuine devolution can provide the basis on which fo revitalise
public services as the relationship, public trust and satisfaction
with local government continues to increase. Currently there is
an unique opportunity to build a more prosperous future, “to
connect with people’s identities and sense of community; to
capture the energy and dynamism which have been hallmarks
of our response to this crisis; to rebuild the economy so that it

benefits everyone”'.

The advantages of devolving decision-making, powers and
funding are rooted in local leadership, ensuring services are
more responsive fo local circumstances at the right level and in

joining them up in the most effective and efficient way in places.

It should enable the whole range of services to reconnect with
residents and businesses at a level that makes most sense, so
they can see how local and natfional government are together
delivering for them and the places they care for.

We must be more ambitious for devolution than in previous
rounds. The government should bring forward a menu of
options for funding, powers and flexibilities for places to move
forward on, across infrastructure, skills, housing, employment
and more (Box 1). It should provide absolute clarity for the
process and timefables and focus on driving collaboration in
places fowards shared goals, rather than forcing places to
have a series of bidding negotiations with different national
departments and agencies.

As a minimum, local leaders should be able to bring together
government departments locally to agree outcomes and plans
to achieve them. This could be achieved quickly and efficiently.
For instance, by better aligning how national agencies work

in local areas, developing and deepening partnerships and
joined up planning, designing and commissioning services,
and/or devolving and pooling resources in partnerships.
Partnerships could bring together Ministry of Housing
Communities and Local Government, Homes England,
Department for Transport, Business, Enterprise, Innovation and
Skills, Jobcentre Plus and wider welfare system, and so on, all
together in partnership with councils and partners in places.

The sheer complexity of exisfing services across places dwarfs
the simple organisation of different services across two councils
in shire areas. It's imperative therefore that devolution does

not get fripped up and bogged down in debate on local
government reorganisation, it would be a huge distraction from
the recovery effort and other priorities. District councils working

1 Llocal Government Association, Rethinking public services, 2020

Page 29



with partners should be free to decide how to organise turbulence and discord within local government risks

themselves to best deliver different interventions at the right significantly curtailing what places can achieve through
levels. Places need stability and confidence in their financial planning reforms, in building homes directly, in responding to
future in order to continue innovating and invest in services and the climate emergency, in promoting health and wellbeing,
in local economies. The next budget and the autumn spending reducing homelessness and so on. Local government is af the
review will need to take first steps to properly enshrine long forefront of resolving some the most pressing national issues.

term, locally led investment local government and local

economies.

Furthermore, the government should consider the impact
of pursuing reform on its wider policy ambitions. Creating

Box 1: The opportunities and asks of devolution

e Growing local economies — districts are the building
blocks for growth with the levers to make it happen
and the connections info economies. Working
together in clusters that reflect functional economic
geographies, connecting fowns with cities, they can
create one vision and should have a lead role in
shaping UK Shared Prosperity Fund and Housing
Infrastructure investments locally.

e Revitalising our fown centres — districts are lead
authorities for the Towns Fund and Future High
Streets Fund, already providing the leadership,
parinership and local know-how and experience
to remodel our town centres into thriving centres of
community, leisure, and retail. We need to go further
and faster in invesfing in our town cenfres as centres
of community and have further powers fo shape
places including lowering of PWLB loan rates.

e Accelerating housing delivery — as planning
authorities and increasingly as house builders,
districts are already af the heart of this agenda.
Devolution should pass further powers for districts fo
ensuring developers build out sites with permission,
fo ensure utility companies move at pace, to
lead spending on infrastructure and support SME
builders, to allow districts to set planning fees
locally, to localise Right to Buy to build homes, and
fo invest in new social housing.

* Rough sleeping, homelessness and the private
rented sector — as housing and benefits authorities
districts want to end homelessness by preventing
it in the first place, devolution must enable this by
reducing complexity and pooling together all
funding at local level in districts, and giving new
powers for districts fo ensure health, employment,
welfare and justice partners collaborate around
a sftrategy in places. Districts should be free to
introduce licencing schemes without SoS approval.

e Shaping local labour markets with devolved skills
and local delivery of the Kickstart Scheme — with

Page 30

local payment mechanisms already in place,
districts can make the case to the DWP to take

on greater local responsibility for managing the
entirety of local labour markefs, and building on
their relationships with employers well placed

to leverage skills funding to help provide quality
training linked to jobs, and learning from the Future
Jobs Fund in delivering the Kickstart Scheme.

leading the journey to environmental sustainability
— with their leading role on planning and the
environment, districts are well placed to bring

all partners together to deliver local priorities for
the environment, sustainability, and community
resilience. Districts should have powers to deliver
zero carbon homes, and green infrastructure

funding for sustainable places.

Helping to put health and social care on a
sustainable footing - disfricts are providers of key
preventative services in communities, including
housing, homelessness, leisure and environmental
health. Devolution should empower prevention,
cementing the role of districts in the local health
system, revitalising leisure services for the future,

and empowering health in the community.

Fiscal freedoms responsive fo local conditions —
devolution should bring district councils a range of
flexible and responsive fiscal tools to match local
circumstances, which are common across local
government in other countries. It will allow districts
fo respond to a whole range of policy issues in

a way which meets specific local needs and
priorities, and to be held to account locally

for them.

Setting out positive visions for public sector reform
with communities af their heart — devolution could
empower local leaders to sef out bold proposals
for improving local government within their
localities, and to provide innovative solutions to
local issues which command the support of the
residents they serve.



CASE STUDIES

Gloucester City Council mobilising and coordinating the
community effort to distribute food packages

The council realised early in the crisis that the most effective
support and response base would be from neighbour to
neighbour. The council partnered with Gloucester Community
Building Collective to help connecting residents and growing
community capacity.

Working together they provided information on practical ideas
for supporting neighbours, they identified one resident street
champion per sireet, and used the #viralkindness to connect
neighbours and signpost onto council services such as picking
up supplies and sending mail.

Working with local business leaders, the council also
created a food consortium, which included repurposing an
enterfainment venue into a food warehouse as a central

collection point for collecting and distributing food parcels.

Requests for food came through street champions or the
County Council's Help Hub. These requests for food were
triaged with options for free food parcels or paid packages,
supplied through a range of partners, providing a lifeline for
those shielding or self-isolating.

Many neighbours have built and sustained new relationships
as a result of the schemes.

Stevenage Borough Council accreditation scheme helping
local businesses re-open

The council has created a Covid Secure Status assessment
programme for businesses. The scheme provides marketing
support for businesses have been found as covid secure, and
provides help and advice fo those that did not inifially meet the
steps.

To gain accreditation the businesses are asked to demonstrate
that they have

¢ carried out a Covid- 19 risk assessment and shared
the results with employees

* cleaning, handwashing and hygiene procedures in
line with guidance

* taken all reasonable steps to help people work from
home

* taken all reasonable steps to maintain @ 2m distance
in the workplace

* done everything practical o manage transmission
risk where people cannot be 2m apart

The scheme has been welcomed by businesses, their
employees, and customers, as well as helping reducing the
risks presented by the pandemic.

Craven District Council taking the opportunity to drive a
green recovery

The council has installed Electric Vehicle charging points in
Skipton's High Street Car Park in partnership with Engenie. The
initial cost of the installation was paid by Engenie, who will
recoup their investment through the use of the charging points.
This partnership has enabled us to accelerate our support for
the transition to Electric Vehicle use, a key part of our Climate
Emergency Strategic Plan.

Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council work with local
voluntary community to create food and wellbeing buddy
scheme

The council established an Emergency Food Parcels delivery
system, for people in need but not on the government's ‘shielded
list'. This was based on self-referrals to a new service called
Residents Support Scheme, which were triaged to understand
wider needs.

Once an Emergency Food Parcel had been delivered the
council recognised some resident’s required additional support
regards access to food.

Working with local voluntary groups the council allocated
a Food & Wellbeing Buddy to a vulnerable person who
telephone the person to understand their food requirements.

Ongoing access 1o food is discussed and agreed with the
person, recognising their needs and requirements. This could be
something as simple as collecting via local Food Bank or could

be underfaking a weekly shop utilising supermarket vouchers.




RETAIN AND BUILD ON THE LOCAL
CAPACITY TO DELIVER AT PACE

“local government will be at the heart of our economic recovery...

when it comes to devolution, we'll be building on what we know

works... empowering local councils to lead the economic recovery.”

Robert Jenrick, 3 July 2020, Speech to the Local Government Association

Devolution should empower district councils’ existing
local delivery capacity with the tools and funding

to deliver growth, rather than remove it through
reorganisation. District councils have been at the centre
of the sectors’ successes across the Covid-19 pandemic;
delivering the most business grants the most quickly,
rapidly accommodated rough sleepers, mobilising and
coordinating the community effort, stepping in to help
shielded and non-shielded vulnerable groups, keeping
waste collections running, the planning system going, and
more. Devolution should empower districts because they
deliver solutions, not problems.

In market towns and new towns, in cathedral cities, coastal
communities and the countryside, devolution must capifalise on
the capacity of districts to both be strategic, and to deliver, to
know their community, and to move quickly; it must not remove
local delivery capacity at such a critical point for our local

economies and public services.

District councils are the strategic leaders of place. They are the
conveners, enablers, and leaders, working collaboratively to
provide the unifying place-based vision that mobilises local
partnerships around the interests of businesses and residents.

As planning authorities, they create and deliver a vision for
places, thinking decades into the future. As champions of
growth they are working with partners to attract investment

and shape the green economy, to support companies in
growth sectors, to align skills with jobs, and to promoting health
through housing, leisure, and place-making, the giants of
prevention, keeping people ouf of expensive health and care

systems.

And districts councils are frusted to deliver. As billing authorifies,

licensing authorities, housing and planning authorities, and

delivers of business grants, leaders of high streets, drivers of
regeneration and development, districts deliver for business
every day. Across the pandemic, districts delivered the greatest
number of business grants most quickly (Table 1), supported
businesses and visitor economies to adapt, enabled high streets
fo re-open investment, provided support and advice to small
business, confinued the planning system, and more.

And districts deliver for some of the most vulnerable in the local
community, supporting them through tough times and spreading
opportunity. As housing authorities, welfare authorities and
homelessness authorities, districts are uniquely able to align
local efforts for job creation with skills and employment and
practical help for people to take and thrive in those jobs. Across
the pandemic disfrict councils accommodated and supported
rough sleepers, delivered new support systems for shielded and
non-shielded vulnerable groups, mobilised and organised the
local community effort, delivered the hardship fund, and more.

District councils have also kept services going, throughout the
stresses in their community and in their organisations; confinuing
waste collections, keeping parks open, the planning system
moving, and so on. To achieve this they have been innovative
in providing support, redeploying staff to help the vulnerable,
harnessing the power of community to lead at the street level,
and adapting services to respond to emerging challenges such
as loneliness and mental health.

This agility in delivery is the hallmark of successful local services.
As the country shifts o dealing with the local recovery local
public services will have to succeed in both strategy and
delivery; it must bring both leadership and vision, and local
connectedness into every business, community and partner.
Having one without the other limits what we can achieve for
places.

Page 32



Devolution must empower this delivery and strategic capacity,
working with it fo pivot the whole place effort towards growth
and jobs driving our national recovery one economy at a fime.
There would be enormous risks for communities should the
government seek to remove this local delivery capacity at such

a crucial time for our local economies.

TABLE ONE Business grants paid out by 19 April 2020

London 231920 109,980
Boroughs
Metropolitan 408,796 177840
councils
Shire districts 792102 428,282
Unitary 495,528 252230

authorities

4742

43.50

54.07

50.90

Q92.12%

91.44%

N.77%

?1.20%



CASE STUDIES

Watford Borough Council harnessing identity through
Watford Helps charities appeal

The council hamessed its sense of place to generate financial
support for the local voluntary sector to continue with their
essential work supporting residents.

Auctions, sponsored walks, raffles, donations from the business
community and a weekly quiz hosted by the Mayor and
football legend Luther Blissett raised over £156,000 which has
been shared with over 40 local charities such as the Peace
Hospice, homelessness charity New Hope, Watford Womens
Centre, Watford Foodbank and many others.

A creative social media campaign used a host of stars with a
Waltford connection to support the campaign including rugby
player Maro ltoje, 80s pop icon Limahl, England footballer
Kelly Smith and actor Mark Bonnar.

Colchester City Council leading the town centre recovery

The lockdown galvanised the council and business networks
which were established to develop Colchester's £25million
town deal bid.

Within hours a Covid- 19 website offered trusted sources of
information fo business. The Colchester Business Enterprise
Agency was granted £9,450 providing crisis business support,
delivering a 52% increase in appointments with companies of

all life-stages and sectors.

A further £20,000 is supporting resilience, adaptation and
recovery, aided by the expansion of Gigabit broadband
enabling business innovation and free trials of 25 e-cargo
delivery bikes to mitigate carbon footprint. A Town Centre Task
Force created Covid-compliant spaces fo provide access fo
the daytime and night-fime economies.

Wychavon District Council has made new bursaries
available to encourage young people to enroll in an
apprenticeship

Apprentices can apply for help with the cost of travel, clothing
and tools or equipment.

The following bursaries are available:

* Maximum of £50 per month for up to 6 months for
fravel expenses

*  One-off grant payment with @ maximum value of

£75 for clothing

*  One-off grant payment with @ maximum value of
£100 for tools or equipment

To qualify for a grant, apprentices will need to be aged
between 16-24 years old, have a salary of £175 or less per
week and live in Wychavon district.

Page 34

The scheme encourages more people fo consider an
apprenticeship as a viable career choice and help them
overcome cost barriers, which are important for key sectors in
the local economy.

North Devon District Council support for hospitality
businesses reopening

The council intfroduced an advice programme for helping all
local businesses understand how to safely reopen and to adapt
their offer to grow their business — on everything from food
safety, social distancing, to waste and car parking.

The council has launched this service alongside a campaign
encourages residents to shop, buy and eat locally, thereby
injecting money info the local economy to help it recover from

the damage caused during the coronavirus pandemic.

This includes making lifestyle choices that will help protect the
natural environment in North Devon; taking advantage of the
shops, restaurants and leisure facilities on our doorstep reduces

the impact on our environment.

The campaign provides a single strong brand which is promoted
across the local economy and out into the community through
the local groups and business forums.

-

\\ F’i\’ﬁl

=

%
{ &
@

¥
P

S e



EMPOWER REAL-WORLD ECONOMIES

“The days of Whitehall knows best are over. We will give towns,

ciies, and communities of all sizes across the UK real power and

real investment to drive the growth of the future and unleash their

"

full potential

Conservative Party Manifesto, 2019

District councils reflect the towns, cities and communities
in which people live and businesses operate. They are
embedded in the catchment areas for high streets and
football teams, the travel areas for work and leisure; they
know their local economies and hold a range of levers to
get growth going. A district level response is key, evidence
suggests the pandemic’s impact on jobs and growth will
vary between district areas within county areas more than
between county areas and core cities. And so, devolution
must empower district councils and partners around the
economic areas of our future; celebrating our historical
ceremonial counties rather than being held back by them.

Districts are the champions of the towns, cities in which people
live and businesses operate. They represent the administrative
level that best reflects the catchment areas for high streets,

the travel areas for work and leisure, the places of local

friend networks and community clubs and pastimes. They are
embedded in places, part of the community, holding a wide
range of levers for growth.

Devolution must help communities, fowns and cities stabilise
and grow, levelling up across the country, because our
national recovery will rely on success across local economies.
While some levers are best held nationally, many could
achieve more when brought together locally around the labour,
housing and economic markets that have evolved over fime.

As illustrated in Figure 1 and 2, functional economic areas

are based on patterns of one or more types of economic
activity, reflecting travel to work areas, housing markets, and
employment density?.

District councils deliver at the administrative level closest to
local markets, and are most able to come together as the
flexible building blocks across wider economic geographies.
Leading the collaboration around a single vision and single
partnership through which departments and agencies of
national government can engage with towns and cities. As
large, polycentric historical administrative units, county council
boundaries bear little resemblance to functional economic

areas.

This is reinforced by the economic impact of the Covid- 19
pandemic. Although it is too early to understand the full impact,
early evidence demonstrates significant variations between
district council areas. In fact, in comparing the impact of
Covid-19 on jobs and growth between places, Grant Thornton
concluded that the variation between disfrict councils within
county areas is not only more significant than between county
areas but also between county areas and Llondon and the
Core Cities — connection into local economies at district level
will be crucial to our national recovery.

Figure 3 sets out the significant variation in anficipated decline
of GVA between disfricts within county areas. For instance, in
Worcestershire the decline of GVA varied from 16.1% in Wyre
Forest to 11.4% in Bromsgrove, by comparison the difference
between all county areas and core cities was just 1%
Furthermore, county areas with the lowest overall GVA decline
have the greatest variation, pointing to the risk that county-
based approaches would mask underlying challenges at a

local economic level.

2 htips://commonslibrary.parliament.uk /research-briefings/cbp-8619/

Page 35



Itis a similar story when looking at the numbers of jobs at risk.
For instance, in Leicestershire the percentage of at-risk jobs
ranged from as high as 63.9% in Charmwood to as low as
39.8% in Blaby, by comparison the difference between all
county areas and core cities was just 9% And similar again
when looking af claimant count. For instance, in Kent the
claimant count ranged from as low as 4% in Sevenoaks up to
10.3% in Thanet. And the same again for earnings. For instance,
in Surrey the difference between medium earnings between
districts is as large as £23,290.

The report suggests the variation within county areas was due
to their ‘polycentric nature'®, in that they do not reflect functional
economic areas, but large administrative boundaries. For
economic growth and connection info businesses large and
small, sprawling county unitary councils actually risk creating
some diseconomies of scale.

FIGURE 1 Travel fo work patterns across all modes

As housing and planning authorities, district councils understand
and know these local economic areas intrinsically. For

instance, they develop sfrategic housing market assessments

fo understand housing and economic frends, while connecting
with every business as billing and licencing authorities.
Devolution and the local recovery effort must put districts af the
centre of delivery, focusing on growing our markets of the future
while celebrating the wider ceremonial county, without getting
held back it's out of date administrative boundary.

Source: Alasdair Rae, ONS

3 https://www.grantthorton.co.uk /globalassets/ 1.-member-firms /united-kingdom/pdf/publication /2020 /place -based-recovery.pdf

Page



FIGURE 2 Employment density on district council boundaries

Employment Density

B coz o 160345
| EEERCERLYL
. EETEF

112 1o 3,98
0. o 112

—

Source: Transformation in localities, Grant Thornton, 2018

FIGURE 3 GVA decline as a result of Covid-19 pandemic, variation within county areas

% decline

10
2 g g 2 g 2 2 2 2 & £ & 2 2 5 5 53 8 5 £ %2 Pz
_c_c_c_c_c_c_c_c_c_c_&_c_g_cmmm;_g_c:t_ct-‘_-__c
S 3 3§ 8 8 § &2 & & 38 2 £ 2 53 3 &4 g 8 85 g8 5 5 ¢
220 T 00 N AN TN N A O R s2 222 ¢
L g £ 2 O B OB & i g 1

€ 8 2 B £ § £ % & ol = 8 8
0O 5 s 3 8 @ § = £ e O B 8 £ &
o g = = £ T w = 3 S =
gI“” 3 5 = 2 5} o g"

Q £ =
O = =} ©
=

Source: Place-based recovery, Grant Thornton, 2020

Page 37



CASE STUDIES

Epping Forest District Councils co-designing the
health recovery

The council has engaged 350 residents living in estates where
the impact of Covid- 19 has been most significant, placing
them af forefront of co-designing inifiatives to support local
recovery.

Socially distanced doorstep conversations were undertaken to
hear residents’ own stories.

The experiences of residents, including the availability and
ease of access to key services, were shared with strategic
stakeholders from across the whole system. Key themes
identified included; deteriorating mental health, physical
inactivity, poor community resilience and dissatisfaction with
the neighbourhood environment.

The community themselves will work alongside agencies o
reimagine services moving forwards.

Gedling Borough council leading the local
humanitarian response

In March 2020 the council rapidly established a new Giving
for Gedling service was in place in response to the Covid-19
pandemic. The team was comprised of redeployed staff
working together fo provide support to vulnerable residents.

The Council's conference centre became the main
headquarters for the local humanitarian response to the
coronavirus outbreak. It became a super food bank, guided
in its sef up through partnerships with local Food Banks and
Church leaders. Since the Hub opened in March 2020, local
volunteers and staff have dispatched 1267 food parcels. Fresh
food has been produced on-site for inclusion in each parcel
by local catering company.

Alongside this the council established a volunteer registration
portal on its website which saw 520 volunteers registering,
offering assistance with food parcel packing and delivery and
telephone befriending.

Harborough District Council promoting good health
across the lockdown

The council adapted its exercise referral programme tfo serve
those residents who are more at risk due to COVID with a
large maijority being required to shield, by developing a self-
help page, and developing a programme of online sessions
supporting people fo stay connected and acfive.

The council also worked with hospitals and health partners

to adapt its targeted intervention programmes for getting
cancer patients fit for surgery and supporting cardiac patients.
Working with health-based instructors, they have to put in
place a safe and progressive strategy to keep individuals

active during this time, often providing advice /support around
home-based exercise through video calling. Moving forwards,
the council are now in a position to be able to start slowly
encouraging individuals back into activity and will be working
with our instructors to provide outdoor based closed group

sessions.

Stroud District Council shaping a new future for
market towns

The council is working in close partnership with parish and town
councils and local chambers of commerce to promote safe visits
fo our main market towns across the disfrict, boosting business
and helping economic recovery.

The council is just completing a highly successful six week shop
local’ campaign, in partnership with local businesses, which has
generated huge interest on social media. And is now building
on the relationships made to develop a comprehensive market
towns strategy with partners, helping to re-define and boost
vitality of our market towns and support the transition to a low

carbon future.




CONTINUE TO ANCHOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT

IN LOCAL COMMUNITIES

‘I do not believe that, when the people of the United Kingdom voted to

fake back control, they did so in order for that control to be hoarded

in Westminster. So we are going fo give greater powers to council

leaders and to communities.”

Boris Johnson, 27 July 2019, Speech at Manchester Science and Industry Museum

English local government is amongst the most centralised in
Europe, and devolution must not centralise further again.
With populations nearing the size of Northern Ireland

and landscapes several times larger than Greater London,
county unitary authorities would resemble regional, not
local, government. The average size of a new county
unitary council would be 122 times larger than the average
council in Germany, 14 times larger than in Denmark, and
5 times larger than the current average for all councils in
England. Covid-19 revealed resilience, strength and power
in our communities, they must not be pushed away; when
asked in referenda, the public consistently vote against
creating new unitary counties, and they should be properly
involved any future debate.

The Covid- 19 experience has reignited interest in the local
community, revealing its power and resilience. People do not
want local district council services — such as waste, housing,
planning, environmental, licensing, parks efc - to become
more remote, to move into offices hours away, and to be less
responsive and representative to what is happening in their
village, town and community. We know this is frue, because
public consistently votes against proposals for unitary councils
in referendums and they should be properly engaged in
decisions, through referendums* and other routes, on any future
change.

County councils represent populations averaging 843,000
and up to 1.6 million, almost equal to Northern Ireland, and
covering vast landscapes that can take hours to cross by car,
even longer by bus. This may work well enough for the delivery

of some services, however the case for having county unitary
councils accepts a huge centralisation of infrinsically local
district services into units more akin to regional government.

England already has the largest local government in Europe®
(Table 2). County councils have been clear they want to
create county unitary councils everywhere. With an average
population of 843,000, this would create councils 468 times
larger than average councils in France, 122 times larger than
average councils in Germany, 24 times larger than average
councils in Sweden, 14 times larger than councils in Denmark,
and almost 5 times larger than the current average of all
English councils. Our residents and businesses deserve better.

Larger local government is less representative local
government. With a national average of 3,300 voters

per councillor, England is already substantially less locally
represented then other counfries {Table 2). Within this context, it
is district councillors and local town and parish councillors that
maintain the closest link between councils and communities with
2,000 voters per councillor, while counties have over 9,000
voters per councillor (Table 3).

In fact, the argument for county unitary councils accepts

a significant dilution of local democracy. Taking the

existing average numbers of voters per council seat, local
representation on crucial district services such as planning,
waste and growth would become 4.5 times less locally
representative in a county unitary on average. That is 4.5

times less responsive to residents, fo businesses, to MPs, to
communities, to local partners. And in the largest county, a new

4 Forinstance, in 2017 84% of voters in Christchurch voted against the creation of Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole unitary
authority. And before that, 70% of voters in Shrewsbury and 86% of voters in Bridgnorth voted against new unitary councils in

Shropshire, and 76% voted against a unitary in Durham County.

5 hnps://dismdcounci|s.info/reporTs/eFFedive-represemotion»{or—\oco|-cmagerea9



unifary at the county level would be seven fimes less locally County unitary councils efforts to develop genuine proposals to
representative on disfrict matters. recreate capacity in local councils would take huge time, effort

. : . and resources; ultimately working towards replacing a small
County councils advancing unitary arguments have ‘ . .
. . ' amount of disfrict council capacity through another new tier of
acknowledged this weakness, and in response promise to _ _ i
. local government which would emerge inconsistently across
bolster the role of the thousands of local town and parish - : )

) L ) ) places. Instead, communities and their local councils would
councils, but with litlle detail what will be devolved to them and ) _ ST

o : be best able to grow their added value working with principal

how. There is a risk that this becomes a token gesture and local N o ] , .

. . authorities closer to them, building their capacity working
councils deserve better, they are crucial partners and should be ‘ T ‘
. . collaboratively with district councils and local partners.
supported fo build on their strengths.

TABLE TWO Average Representative Ratios

Number of
Conry Pl lom WP o0y e
councils
France (eY4 36,500 1,800 515 130
Spain 47 8,100 5,800 65 720
Germany 83 12,013 6,900 200 410
ltaly 60 8,000 7,500 100 600
Belgium 1.5 58I 19,700 13 880
Sweden 10 290 34,400 46 220
Netherlands 17 390 43,500 10 1700
Denmark 6 08 61,000 5 1200
England 56 315 177,700 7 3,300*

Source: Council of Europe Committee on Local and Regional Democracy (CLRD) (2008) and CEMR/Dexia 2010, 2012 and 2013 (figures updated and
rounded for ease of presentation)

TABLE THREE Population, council seats, voters per council seat by authority type

Average number of Average voters

Average population Average electorate

council seats per council seat

Unitary and Mets 250,290 187,800 60 3,130
Llondon Boroughs 278,000 182,628 57 3,204
Shire Districts 114,000 88,536 42 2,108
County council 843,000 621,090 6/ 9,270

Page 40



CASE STUDIES

Norwich City Council adapting support to
community groups

The council has strong community links and had co-designed
a web platform (www.lumi.org.uk) providing resources and
support on undertaking community action, showcasing what
was happening at a local level.

The site quickly added a Covid-19 section and officers worked
with new and existing groups fo ensure all services and
adaptations to services were included. There was a secfion

on developing new mutual aids with a dedicated officer to
support and proactively confact new groups we heard about
to offer help, and regular stories were shared to inspire others.

Residents and officers used the site to find suitable local
support for those they spoke to, meaning far fewer needed
interventions from the council directly. Many of these mutual
aid groups are continuing fo thrive and are being supported to

continue into the future.

Hertsmere District council leading the social response
and recovery

The council provided additional funding of £ 10k to
communities through the Volunteer Compassionate Community
Connector programme in response to Covid-19. The assistance
is for people who are healthy and at low risk fo volunteer to
help others across the district.

The council also released 10 members of staff to support the
register and vet potential volunteers. Volunteers were then
matched with request for support from vulnerable members of
the community. Practical Support requests include shopping,
prescription collections, pet sitting, urgent supplies and newly
created walking buddy scheme.

Alongside this the council worked with partners to establish
health and social care hubs, providing free lifestyle support for
individuals and their families covering mental health, physical
activity, weight management, smoking cessation, health MOTs
and nutrifional advice.

Warwick District Council launched Community Economic
Recovery Fund

The council has made funding available fo help support
community organisafions through the ‘recovery’ phase,
focused on enabling them to deliver essential services to
vulnerable people most impacted by Covid-19 in keeping with
Government guidance.

Grants of up to £3,000 are available to organisations who
have a role in supporting the Warwick Disfrict community
during this time. The new funding is targeted at not-for profit
groups such as local registered charities, foodbanks and
community groups who are experiencing short-term financial

hardship, have ceased operations or have had to adapt or
increase their service due fo the pandemic.

North West Leicestershire District Council create online
business support hub

In partnership with the Business Gateway, the council has

set up a growth hub helping businesses learn and exchange
experience in dealing with the challenges surrounding Covid -
including access to webinars supporting business and personal
development amid the crisis.

Topics include infroduction to pricing, the science of personal
productivity, contingency planning, purpose and strategy,
company values in a crisis, and online networking.

Looking ahead the inifiative will offer free weekly webinars on
building business resilience and a new programme of one-
fo-one sessions helping local businesses restart smoothly and

successfully post Covid-19 crisis.

Page 41



REJECT FALSE ARGUMENTS THAT BIGGER LOCAL
GOVERNMENT IS BETTER OR CHEAPER LOCAL

GOVERNMENT

“It's about strengthening and empowering local leadership and local

institutions to be the drivers of future prosperity. Providing power back

to local communities.”

Robert Jenrick, 2 July 2020, speech to Local Government Association

The primary case for county unitary councils focuses on
achieving scale and savings. However, as a House of
Commons briefing for MPs summarised in 2019, all the
evidence is clear that increasing scale is no guarantee for
increasing efficiency or improving public services. Although
there might be some benefit of delivering some services at
different levels, including having some services more local,
evidence points to other factors playing a more influential
role in service delivery and efficiencies, such as political
and officer leadership. Meanwhile county councils have
promoted questionable projected savings from county
unitary proposals, which focus on removing delivery
capacity and do not come close to resolving the funding
challenges facing local government; evidenced by the
significant financial challenges facing recently created
unitary councils. In fact, rooting services in locality could be

most effective in achieving long term financial sustainability.

The experience in responding to Covid 19 crisis has proven
that bigger is not always better. There have been important
nafional inferventions that protect economies; the furlough
scheme, the eviction ban, and more. Some of the greatest
successes across the pandemic have been delivered locally
when backed by a national commitment; for instance, getfing
rough sleepers info accommodation, delivering business grants,

and marshalling the local community effort.

The experience has reinforced existing evidence that bigger
local government is not better local government. As concluded
by a House of Commons briefing for MPs last year, ‘the
evidence around an optimum scale of local government

is equivocal'®, which referenced studies finding very litfle
relationship between measures of performance or efficiency
and population levels, stating:

'...it may be possible to show a link between population size
and costs or effectiveness in some parts of some services, but
the relationship is by no means all one way, and there are other
factors which probably matter much more... the political culture
and management style of a county, district or borough are
widely accepted as being most important in determining how
efficient and effective an authority is.””

Itis therefore more reliable to look at the scale for delivering
different services; research has generally found that many
services are better delivered at a scale smaller than many
county areas®, but overall the evidence is not equivocal. In
fact, looking at the scale of delivery for different services
suggests that multi-fier systems (common across all countries in
the western world) may be the preferred means through which
deliver different services at the most appropriate scale.

So, the evidence suggests bigger local government does

not necessarily mean more efficient local government.
Nevertheless, counties have estimated savings from the process
of creating new county unitary councils of between £23m and
£29m per new unitary county on average. These assumpfions
are highly questionable for various reasons, for example:

* they do not consider the counterfactual savings that
district and county councils might otherwise make
through innovations and partnerships, which can

6 hitps:/ /researchbriefings files.parliament.uk /documents /CBP-8619 /CBP-8619.pdf

7 Tony Travers, George Jones and June Burnham, The impact of population size on local authority costs and effectiveness, Joseph

Rowntree Foundation, 1993

8 Population size and local authority performance, Communities and LEOQQ/Qnm&ZCmdiH University, 2006



be achieved without the management overheads,
administrative upheaval, and distraction from delivery.

* they are savings focused on removing local
government capacity to drive the local growth and
jobs that generate the tax receipts that fund public

services.

* the analysis assumes savings reducing 90 to 100
councillors in each new county unitary, but counties
pursuing county unifary bids are proposing having
many more councillors than that. There are similar
uncertainties with the staffing assumptions.

* the costs of moving to new county unitary models do
not include the large potential cosfs of growing the
role of local fown and parish councils which feature
in the bids of county unitary proposals, genuine efforts
to bolster the role of hundreds of local councils in

each county would not be cheap.

* the savings indicated through models on
spreadsheets are challenging fo redlise in practice
requiring sufficient political and officer leadership and
attention, which is difficult to guarantee given the
simultaneous crisis in communities and challenges in

public services.

* the drive for savings info county unitary councils will
put af risk a range of discrefionary services, currently

provided by district councils, which are important

fo residents and business in localities. The saving
assumptions might already include the loss of these
important services.

Even if the savings provided by county councils are to be
accepted, they are modest in the context of the significant and
growing financial challenges in local government - particularly
across adult social care, children’s services, and services for
special education needs and disability - and alone will not
achieve long term financial sustainability.

This is illustrated by recently created unitary councils
experiencing similar levels of financial challenges, and also by
the indication that unitary councils created in the late 1990s
might also be caught up in yet more reorganisation. In fact, as
argued by the LGA and others, the resolution and infegration of
health and social care in communities might be the most crucial
route to improvements and efficiencies in local government
services across places’, and that this is best delivered at the
local community level'

This is supportive of other research which suggests that more
local models of local government are most likely to achieve
longer financial sustainability. This is due to having more
accountable political leadership and community engagement,
enabling councils to create new relationships with residents
based on co-production and independent rather than

paternalism and service provision™.

9 https://www.local.gov.uk/about/campaigns/lives-we-want-lead-lga-green-paper-adult-social-care /towards-sustainable-adult

10 https://www.aylesburyvaledc.gov.uk/sites/default /files /page_downloads/ Strategic-options-case-for-modernising-local-

government-in-Bucks.pdf

Page 43



CASE STUDIES

Chelmsford City Council engagement with business on
local recovery

In May the council sent a business recovery survey fo over
3,000 SMEs, many of whom had applied for the Government
funded business support grants. With close to 50% of
respondents indicating that they did not expect to be trading
in 12 months fime, the council has used the responses to
connect with its business support partners agencies (Colbeg,
BEST Growth Hub, and Back to Business) to match support to
business need, as the local economy seeks to recover.

Sevenoaks District Council establishes a business board
to drive recovery

In response to the new pressures being faced in the local
economy the council has launched a new Business Board.
The board is attended by business leaders from businesses
large and small, across a wide array of services and sectors
and business young and old. Making use of remote meeting
technology, the council has made a conscious decision

fo make the meefings 1 hour long. Each meeting has o

single focus, just one question to answer. Contributions from
attendees allow us to quickly identify their priorities and make
a plan to take action. The response from businesses has been
overwhelmingly positive and will shape our economic action

plan now and in the future.

Malvern Hills District Council campaign to help young
people build life skills

A new campaign was launched fo encourage young people
across the Malvern Hills District to gain valuable life skills.

Malvern Hills District Council has partnered with Malvern Youth
Advisory Network to deliver ‘Futureproof’ which will run from
13 1o 26 July.

The campaign is being championed by the council’s new Youth
Chair and Advisors and is aimed af 11 to 17-year-olds. It will
encourage young people to build resilience and feel part of
the community, as well as help them gain valuable life skills.

A range of different topics will be covered from budgeting
and mindfulness to coping with exam stress and cooking
healthy meals.

Futureproof will be promoted on a new webpage, as well as
through videos, posts and activities on social media.

South Lakeland District Council launch consultation with
residents and businesses to shape post-Covid future

Residents have been invited to have their say on a major plan

that will shape South Lakeland’s post-Coronavirus future.

The council is taking the opportunity to re-start its engagement

work on the Local Plan review, which considers everything
from what employment and housing the area needs to tackling
climate change and how special landscapes can be protected.

The council is now keen to hear how people think the
experience and impacts of the Coronavirus crisis should
influence the long-term plan, which guides council policies for
the next 10 years and beyond.

Page 44



SUPPORT STRATEGIC LEADERSHIP ACROSS WIDER
FUNCTIONAL ECONOMIC AREAS

"We remain committed to devolving power to people and places across

the UK. Our ambition is for full devolution across England, building on

the successful devolution of powers to city region mayors ... so that every

part of our country has the power to shape its own destiny.”

Conservative Party Manifesto, 2019

District councils are the natural administrative building
blocks across wider geographies and are already coming
together to provide leadership on wider strategic issues
connecting towns and cities. Devolution should further
enable this by equipping district councils and partners,

like Local Enterprise Partnerships, to lead strategic issues
such as infrastructure, transport and inward investment
across wider economic areas; potentially coming together
in mayoral combined authorities only where places want
them. County unitary councils would not work well within
such models; creating strategic leadership tension between
a small number of large organisations, meanwhile reducing
the local delivery capacity to get things done.

Wider functional economic geographies are much broader
than single district councils, or single fowns and cities, but
instead are connecting our places in wider economies. District
councils are the natural administrative building blocks that

can come together across large functional economic areas
providing leadership on wider strategic issues, working with key
parners such as Local Enterprise Partnerships.

District councils have always led the way in innovation with
collaboration, partnership and shared services with a focus on
oufcomes. Drawing on engagement with partnerships across
the country, previous work by Grant Thornton'" has summarised
how the best district-led collaboration is:

* built on the powerful tools that districts have always
had at their disposal

* boundary-blind and driven by a place-based vision
for success

* roofed in and responsive to a defailed understanding
of locality, residents and businesses

* enfrepreneurial, commercial and innovative

* focused on local economic growth to support the
wider economy

* consensus-led and supportive of the aspirations of
ploce-based

Moving forward, councils might want fo follow in the footsteps
of other areas that have developed combined authorities

on strategic issues such as large-scale infrastructure and
passenger fransport, with district and unitary councils continuing
as delivery the arms. They might span functional economic
areas similar in size to existing combined authorities, which
average at 1.5m population ranging from 700,000 up to
almost 3m (Table 4).

The government's manifesto has sef out a clear preference
for strong mayors. It might be that councils coming together in
combined authorities would want a mayor across the wider
geography attracting investment for strategic infrastructure
and holding levers on other key strategic issues. In such an
arrangement, it might be that it is decided that mayor would
lead a board including the leaders from each of the councils
within the combined authority.

Such an approach is not at all well served through increasing
the number of large county unitary councils. County councils
do not favour combined authorities and mayors. However
should county councils be persuaded into a mayoral combined
authority in refurn for becoming a county unitary, it would only

11 hitps:/ /districtcouncils.info /news-coverage / den-and-grant-thornton-transformation-in-localities-toolkit /

Page 45



realistically include one or two large councils creating tension
and confusion on the strategic leaderships with the mayor, they
would be foo similar; whilst removing the crifical local delivery
capacity through a turbulent process of reorganisation.

TABLE FOUR Combined authority by population

Combined authority Population
West Midlands 2,928,592
Greater Manchester 2,835,686
West Yorkshire (no mayor) 2,252,300
North East (no mayor) 1945,000
Liverpool City Region 1429,910
South Yorkshire (Sheffield City Region) 1409,000
West of England 1100,000
North of Tyne 880,000
Cambridgeshire and Peferborough 850,000
Tees Valley 700,000

Page 46



CASE STUDIES

Wealden District Council promoting health in place
beyond the crisis

The council is in discussions with the local CCG and the

four GP practices serving Hailsham residents to provide a
modern, more centrally located medical centre. The intention

is to accommodate new post-Covid clinical approaches to
primary care provision and expand the range of services to
what is set to be the key growth town for East Sussex as a
whole. Collaboration and innovation are essential pillars of this
approach in conjunction with a wider regeneration programme
led by the council to create a healthy, green, climate change
friendly modern market town to act as a vibrant destination for
visitors and local people. www.hailshamaspires.co.uk

Colchester Borough Council’'s Community Response Team
mobilised quickly to support communities through the
Covid-19 crisis

The team worked through Community 360 to provide
dedicated support, advice and assistance to those who need
it across the borough, bringing together the council, voluntary
secfor, police, health, education and business community.
The programme moved quickly to:

* create a food package distribution network for
vulnerable groups not included in the government's
'shielded group’

* co-ordinafe and support an extensive volunteer
response within communities

* provide support through the council’s digital inclusion
team for vulnerable people shielding to access the
internet, for instance to shop for groceries and stay in

touch with loved ones

e partner with 18 GP practices to receive referrals from

the council’s social prescription service

* adapt the community transport offer by conducting
welfare calls with people on the scheme, providing
signposting, support and company, as well as
support to access pharmacies

¢ advice communities in how to access foodbanks,
deal with utility companies, and stay well including
looking after mental health

East Suffolk Council supporting older people to connect via
technology

The council worked with local community response groups and
American company Techsilver to get Grandpads - simplified
fablets — aimed af older people across the Disfrict who were
identified through our Home But Not Alone service as feeling
lonely, isolated and disconnected from friends and family.

The recipients will be supported grow in confidence over the
coming weeks and use their Grandpads to access health
services and shop online as well as connecting with family and
friends. As part of the monthly fee, which has been sponsored
by the Council through its Covid funds, Techsilver provide 24,/7
support and our first users are going from strength to strength.

City of Lincoln Council launched a telephone
befriending scheme

The scheme matches council homeworkers with elderly
residents who are af risk of becoming isolated due to their

social networks collapsing amid the coronavirus pandemic.

The scheme contacted 18,000 residents and quickly became a
vital service to support over 450 people in the most vulnerable
sectors of sociefy af a time when they are feeling particularly
afraid and alone.

The council workers would provide company but also advice
on promoting independence, for instance on accessing
services, in using technology, and more.

Within days of launching the scheme, the council allocated
more than 1,100 residents to 22 members of council staff, and
maintaining consistency of confact across the lockdown.

Page 47



INTRODUCE AN UPPER LIMIT FOR THE SIZE
OF NEW UNITARY COUNCILS IN LINE WITH

ELECTORAL EQUALITY

“We will ensure we have updated and equal Parliamentary boundaries,

. /"
making sure that every vote counts the same — a cornerstone of democracy.

Conservative Manifesto, 2019

Local governance should be determined locally, reform
should only take place where there is significant local
agreement that it is the right thing for their residents and
businesses. However, the government should make clear
that any future reform should follow the principles of
electoral equality as a cornerstone of democracy, as set
out in the Conservative Manifesto and now in primary
legislation as part of the boundary review. In doing so,
it would mean indicating that a preferred population
size for any new unitary council be in line with existing
unitary councils, a population of around 250,000 people,
and introducing an upper limit of 500,000 to prevent an
unacceptable divergence from the principles of electoral

equality.

By following the principles of electoral equality, which are set
outin primary legislation as part of the boundary review, the
government should reduce its declared preferred population
size for new unitary councils in line with existing unitary
councils in terms of voters per council seat and number of

council seats.

This will deliver broad consistency in representation across the
country, ensuring our residents and businesses have fair local
representation wherever they live. Based on the averages for
existing unitary councils sef out in Table 5, any new unitary
should have a population of around 250,000 to best achieve
electoral equality and more consistent local government
landscape.

Of course, other considerations would be important, such as fit
with functional economic areas, administrative boundaries,
and physical barriers especially in national parks. But given the
significance of reflecting electoral equality, and the lack of
evidence that scale makes any difference for outcomes and

councils have more than 90 council seats, which creates an
upper limit in itself. Given the above following the infroduction
of the parliament boundary review, it would not be
appropriate to create further county unitary councils
infroducing significant electoral inequality in ways that are
difficult fo justify to residents; undermining a cornerstone of
democracy.

For instance, it would be unreasonable for new county unitary
councils surrounding London with an average population

of 1.4m and average 12,520 voters per council seaf,
neighbouring London Boroughs with average populations of
324,075 and average 2,910 voters per council seat. Voters in
London would be 4 times better represented than in the

surrounding countfies.

Some county councils have suggested they would increase the
number of county seats in a new county unitary. The leader of
Hertfordshire County Council has specified 156 seats for the
county, as refaining the local connection, but this sfill equates
to 7,700 voters per seat, almost 3 times more than in London
Boroughs.

And, as argued elsewhere in this paper, there is no good
reason for having local government any larger than this, it is
not more efficient, more effective, or more agile, but it is less,

and unequally, representative.

efficiency, it would not be reasonable for new unitary coyacils
ge 48

to have a population over 500,000 people. Only 9 exis nga



TABLE FIVE Council seats and voters per council seat by authority type

Average number of Average voters per

Averqge electorate : :
council seats council seat

Unitary and Mets 187800 60 3,130
London Boroughs 182,628 57 3,204
Shire Districts 88,536 42 2,108
County councll 621,090 6/ Q270

Page 49



NEXT STEPS

The route forward must be defined my collaboration around
a focus on the residents and businesses that we are all
collectively serving through this difficult fime.

We would encourage all districts to have wide ranging
discussions locally with their county colleagues, with their town
and parish councils, with their MPs, with their local businesses,
and with the whole range of public services in their place, from
health, to employment, to housing, to transport.

We look forward to seeing the Devolution and Local Recovery
White Paper and will continue to engage with debate into
the future.

Page 50



DISTRICT COUNCILS’ NETWORK
BETTER LIVES — STRONGER ECONOMIES

For more information visit
hitps:/ / districtcouncils.info /

Contact us af den@local.gov.uk

Page 51






POWER IN PLACE: DEVOLUTION & DISTRICTS DCN

DRIVING OUR RECOVERY DISTRICT COUNCILS’ NETWORK
BRIEFI NG FOR PARLIAMENTARIANS BETTER LIVES — STRONGER ECONOMIES

This document sets out the key asks of the District Councils’ Network (DCN) ahead of the
Devolution and Local Recovery White Paper. We hope you will be able to support us over
the coming weeks secure a devolution deal that allows districts to deliver for their local
communities.

ABOUT THE DCN

DCN is a cross-party member led network of 187 district councils. District councils deliver 86
essential services to over 22 million people across 68% of the country, building better lives
and stronger economies. District councils are closest to the residents, communities and
businesses that make our country great, and we know what they need to reach their full
potential.

CONTEXT

We are at a pivotal point in our nation’s history. The coming months will define our future for
generations to come. The Devolution and Local Recovery White Paper must move quickly
for jobs and growth, empowering the existing local capacity and partnerships that can best
deliver for local residents, businesses and communities.

District councils represent the best of local government — they are innovative and
collaborative, they are strategic leaders and trusted deliverers, they are rooted in community
and connected into every business, they drive growth and support some of the most
vulnerable, they are pragmatic focusing on outcomes, and they are deeply embedded in the
fabric of the communities, towns and cities serving 20 million people across the country.

Devolution should back the success of districts in delivery. It should not distract from the
local recovery effort or reduce delivery capacity through forcing reorganisation into a less
local, less agile, less responsive local government pushed by interests wanting county
unitary councils everywhere. Local governance is a local matter, places must be free to
decide how to organise services and to progress any kind of reform only where there is
significant local agreement.

Without doubt, our future national and local prosperity will rely on a route forward that is
defined by local, regional and national collaboration around a focus on the residents and
businesses in places; and at this point they need delivery not debate.

DEVOLUTION AND LOCAL RECOVERY WHITE PAPER: KEY ASKS

The Devolution and Local Recovery White Paper is a crucial opportunity to spread
opportunity to every town, city and community in the UK and delivery prosperity and stability
in a time of great economic uncertainty. To take this opportunity, the Devolution and Local
Recovery White Paper must:

1. Deliver genuine devolution that moves quickly to drive local growth

e There is crisis in our national and local economies and huge challenges facing public
services. Jobs and growth must be priority ambitions for devolution and there must
be proper levelling up of towns, cities and communities across the country to ensure
everyone benefits.

¢ |t should focus on how districts and partners can help deliver best returns from the
whole-state effort in our places by granting them new powers, targeting and joining
up services and investments, and setting out a clear framework for how this will be
taken forward.

Page 53

Appendix 4



POWER IN PLACE: DEVOLUTION & DISTRICTS D N

DRIVING OUR RECOVERY DISTRICT COUNCILS’ NETWORK
BRIEFI NG FOR PARLIAMENTARIANS BETTER LIVES — STRONGER ECONOMIES

It should not get tripped up and bogged down in debate on local government reform,
consuming significant resources and distracting from the urgent task at hand.

Retain and build on the local capacity to deliver

Devolution should empower district councils’ existing local delivery capacity with the
tools and funding to deliver growth, rather than remove it through reorganisation.
District councils have been at the centre of the sectors’ successes across the Covid-
19 pandemic; delivering the most business grants the most quickly, rapidly
accommodating rough sleepers, mobilising and coordinating the community effort,
stepping in to help shielded and non-shielded vulnerable groups, keeping waste
collections running and keeping the planning system going.

Devolution should empower districts because they deliver solutions, not problems.

3. Empower real-world economies

District councils reflect the towns, cities and communities in which people live and
businesses operate. They are embedded in the catchment areas for high streets and
football teams, the travel areas for work and leisure; they know their local economies
and hold a range of levers to get growth going.

A district level response is key. Evidence suggests the pandemic’s impact on jobs
and growth will vary between district areas within county areas more than between
county areas and core cities.

And so, devolution must empower district councils and partners around the economic
areas of our future; celebrating our historical ceremonial counties rather than being
held back by them.

4. Continue to anchor local government in local communities

English local government is amongst the most centralised in Europe, and devolution
must not centralise further again.

With populations nearing the size of Northern Ireland and landscapes several times
larger than Greater London, county unitary authorities would resemble regional, not
local, government.

The average size of a new county unitary council would be 122 times larger than the
average council in Germany, 14 times larger than in Denmark, and 5 times larger
than the current average for all councils in England.

Covid-19 revealed resilience, strength and power in our communities, they must not
be pushed away; when asked in referenda, the public consistently vote against
creating new unitary counties.

5. Reject false arguments that bigger local government is better or cheaper local
government

The primary case for county unitary councils focuses on achieving scale and savings.
However, as a House of Commons briefing for MPs summarised in 2019, all the
evidence is clear that increasing scale is no guarantee for increasing efficiency or
improving public services.?

Although there might be some benefit of delivering some services at different levels,
including having some services more local, evidence points to other factors playing a

1 https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/cbp-8619/

Page 54


https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/cbp-8619/

POWER IN PLACE: DEVOLUTION & DISTRICTS DCN

DRIVING OUR RECOVERY DISTRICT COUNCILS’ NETWORK
BRIEFI NG FOR PARLIAMENTARIANS BETTER LIVES — STRONGER ECONOMIES

more influential role in service delivery and efficiencies, such as political and officer
leadership.

Meanwhile county councils have promoted questionable projected savings from
county unitary proposals, which focus on removing delivery capacity and do not
come close to resolving the funding challenges facing local government; evidenced
by the challenges facing recently created unitary councils. In fact, rooting services in
locality could be most effective in achieving long term financial sustainability.

6. Support strategic leadership across wider functional economic areas

District councils are the natural administrative building blocks across wider
geographies and are already coming together to provide leadership on wider
strategic issues connecting towns and cities.

Devolution should further enable this by equipping district councils and partners, like
Local Enterprise Partnerships, to lead strategic issues such as infrastructure,
transport and inward investment across wider economic areas; potentially coming
together in mayoral combined authorities only where places want them.

County unitary councils would not work well within such models; creating strategic
leadership tension between a small number of large organisations, meanwhile
reducing the local delivery capacity to get things done.

7. Introduce an upper limit for the size of new unitary councils, in line with the
principle of electoral equality

Local governance should be determined locally, reform should only take place where
there is significant local agreement that it is the right thing for their residents and
businesses.

However, the government should make clear that any future reform should follow the
principles of electoral equality as a cornerstone of democracy, as set out in the
Conservative manifesto and now in primary legislation as part of the boundary
review.

In doing so, it would mean indicating that a preferred population size for any new
unitary council be in line with existing unitary councils, a population of around
250,000 people, and introducing an upper limit of 500,000 to prevent an
unacceptable divergence from the principles of electoral equality.

HOW CAN PARLIAMENTARIANS HELP?

Convene a meeting with your local district leader and chief executive to discuss
devolution. DCN is encouraging members to engage more regularly and proactively
with their local MP. Your support for this would be greatly appreciated.

Write to the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government
calling for the Government to support district councils’ key asks for the Devolution
and Local Recovery White Paper, and asking for assurances that districts will be
central to devolution plans.

Speak up for district councils during parliamentary debates and question sessions.
DCN is always happy to provide suggested oral and written questions, and briefings
ahead of debates.

FURTHER INFORMATION

The DCN's full report on devolution is available here. For more information, please contact
dcn@Ilocal.gov.uk.

Page 55


https://districtcouncils.info/news-research/
mailto:dcn@local.gov.uk




Agenda Item 8.

EXECUTIVE - 10 SEPTEMBER 2020

MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS

Executive Summary
This report sets out the proposed recruitment arrangements for the roles of Chief Executive and
Director of Planning from April 2021 upon termination of the existing Chief Executive fixed term
contract of 31 March 2021 and the retirement of the Deputy Chief Executive at the same date.
Recommendations
The Executive is requested to:

RESOLVE That

the recruitment arrangements set out in the report be approved.

Reasons for Decision

Reason  To make the necessary arrangements for the recruitment of two
members of the Corporate Management Team.

The Executive has the authority to determine the recommendation(s) set out above.

Background Papers: None.

Reporting Person: Ray Morgan, Chief Executive
Email: ray.morgan@woking.gov.uk, Extn: 3333

Contact Person: Ray Morgan, Chief Executive
Email: ray.morgan@woking.gov.uk, Extn: 3333

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ayesha Azad
Email: clirayesha.azad@woking.gov.uk

Shadow Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ann-Marie Barker
Email: clirann-marie.barker@woking.gov.uk

Date Published: 2 September 2020
Page 57 EXE20-055



Management Arrangements

Page 58



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

Management Arrangements
Introduction

The contract of employment of the Chief Executive ends on 31 March 2021. The Deputy
Chief Executive is due to retire on 31 March 2021.

This report proposes arrangements for recruiting a new Chief Executive and a new Director
of Planning (The Deputy Chief Executive role is personal to the current incumbent).

The Leader of the Council briefed the Leaders Group on these proposed arrangements.
Job Roles

The job descriptions and roles maps for each role will be updated in preparation for
recruitment. The Leaders Group will be consulted on the drafts with the final versions being
formally approved by the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader of the Council and
the Portfolio Holder.

Proposed Recruitment Arrangements

Recruitment consultants will assist in the recruitment for the two Corporate Management
Team roles. A short list of consultants to be invited to submit proposals is set out below-

Gatenby Sanderson
Jobs Go Public
Osbourne Thomas
Penna

Tile Hill

The Head of Human Resources will obtain proposals and the Chief Executive will select the
consultant in consultation with the Leader of the Council and the Portfolio Holder.

The recruitment consultant will run the recruitment exercise and determine a list of up to five
candidates for each role for review.

The review process will engage Members widely in a series of activities that will be shaped
by the recruitment consultants.

Upon completion of the interviews and engagement exercises final recommendations on the
appointments will be submitted to Council for approval.

Timetable

The detailed recruitment timetable will be finalised when the recruitment consultant is
appointed. The outline timetable is-

Appointment of Recruitment Consultant by 30 September 2020;
Advertisement of roles by 16 October 2020;

Run recruitment process until 30 November 2020;

Special Council Meeting to be scheduled late December or early January.

Implications

Financial

The costs of the recruitment will be met through existing recruitment budgets.

Page 59



5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

6.0

6.1

Management Arrangements

Human Resource/Training and Development

Existing resources will be used to support the recruitment process but the majority of the
detailed work will be undertaken by the recruitment consultant.

Community Safety

There are no community safety issues raised by this report.

Risk Management

There are no risk management issues raised by this report.

Sustainability

There are no sustainability issues raised by this report.

Equalities

The recruitment process will comply with all equality obligations.

Safeguarding

There are no safeguarding issues raised by this report.

Confidentiality

The recruitment details and the details of candidates will remain confidential. The meetings
of Members and of the Council to determine the appointments will be confidential. All details,
will be permanently confidential.

The names of the successful candidates and relevant career details will be published
following the signing of employment contracts.

Consultations

The Leaders Group was consulted on the submission of this report to the Executive.

REPORT ENDS

Page 60



	Agenda
	4. Declarations of Interest
	6. Notice of Motion - Cllr M Ali - Expenses paid by Woking Council owned bodies EXE20-051
	7. Reorganisation of Local Government EXE20-056
	EXE20-056 Appendix 2
	EXE20-056 Appendix 3
	EXE20-056 Appendix 4

	8. Management Arrangements EXE20-055



